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idverde UK Limited

Group Strategic Report
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Idverde UK Limited (“ldverde” or “Group”) is a helding company for the UK trading group. ldverde is a leading
provider of specialist green services, grocunds maintenance, parks management, arboriculture, cleansing,
facilities management, consultancy, playground and sports & landscape creation services.

The Group had a very strong year of organic growth in 2022. Across the pusiness, £48M new sales were
awarded at an industry average conversion rate of 25%. The live pipeline of opportunities ended the year at
£163M.

Term maintenance was the best performing area of the business with £16M annual new business gained with
farward order book additions of £106M. Significant new contracts awarded included a £5.8M per annum, seven-
year contract with The Royal Parks, and a £1.4M per annum, seven-year contract with London and Quadrant.
2022 was also a strong year for retaining existing contracts with Wiltshire Council and Sutton Coldfield Council
being re-awarded on long-term contracts. Term maintenance contracts not awarded to Idverde totalled £16M,
including contracts with PA Housing, Stratford upon Avon Council and Leicestershire County Council.

Our Nature Based Solutions service range continues to develop with biodiversity consultancy, ecology,
landscape design, landscape creation and management apportunities progressing across the country.

Idverde wins the majority of its income by tendering for, and the delivery of, long-term maintenance contracts. It
has an enviable record for the quality of its service delivery and consequently for retaining contracts when they
come up for extension and renewal. The strategy to expand Idverde’s presence and offer a truly national service
delivered via directly employed colleagues is now a demonstrable quality USP in the market.

Idverde continues to follow its four point strategy for growth, namely:

1. Retaining and renewing existing contracts through the continued delivery of a quality service using a
directly employed service provision;

2. Organic growth via new contracts;

3. Acquisitive growth from selective strategic acquisitions; and

4. Continued development of its people, processes and systems.

Key performance indicators ("KPIs™)

Turnover

Turnover for the year was £219,070,000 (2021: £203,334,000).

Gross Profit

The gross profit margin for the period was 7.4% (year ended 31 December 2021: 5.2%).

Maintenance activities were very strong but house builder and creation volumes were lower than expected.
Margins increased due to improved cost control, despite the inflationary environment and losses generated from
some Creation projects. The loss before tax has significantly reduced in 2022 as management take actions to
return the group to profitability.

Future Developments

The primary focus is returning the Company to profit and continuing to implement the strategy. The Company
and Group strategy is successfully growing the business organically through new contract wins and additionally
there is a focus on improving systems and processes to further improve efficiency and control. The Company will
consider acquiring businesses in the future that fit with the strategy and add value to the Company and Group.

Financial risk management

ldverde's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in market prices,
credit risk and liquidity risk. Idverde has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse
effects on its financial performance, by monitering levels of debt finance and the related finance costs. Given the
size of idverde, the ditectors have not delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial risk management to a
sub-committee of the Board. The policies set out by the board of directors are implemented by Idverde's central
finance department.
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idverde UK Limited

Group Strategic Report (continued}
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Price Risk

Idverde is exposed to commodity price risk as a result of its operations. Idverde sources products from its supply
chain on a best price basis, leveraging off the UK {and on occasion) the European Group'’s size and bandwidth to
achieve the best commercial terms. The Group has been closely monitoring commodity prices, particuiarly in
light of the stretched supply chain developing world wide and the impact of fuel and other price rises. Timber,
cument, building materials and playground eguipment have an impact on the Company's material costs. Idverde
continues to work with its customer base in order to mitigate the impact of unavoidable material price increases.
The company does not hedge for commodities.

Credit Risk

The group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales
are made. During 2022 the group utilised credit insurance for certain private sector transactions. There were no
occasions during 2022 where the credit insurance policy was required.

Liquidity Risk

ldverde Group, with the support of the Group's principal shareholder, actively maintains a mixture of long term
and short term debt finance that is designed to ensure the Group has sufficient available funds for operations
and planned expansions.

Business risk

Idverde regularly assesses risks that impact on the business. This includes our processes and procedures in
relation to quality and health and safety. ldverde has maintained its full accreditation for 1S09001, 15014001 and
ISO45001. As part of our integrated Management System, ldverde conducts regular risk assessments and
audits with management committed fo improving controls and processes. ldverde's Leadership team regularly
reviews the outcomes of such risk assessments together with related health and safety matters, including
incident investigaticn and audit findings. During the year, ldverde continued its training programme for managers
and relevant Directors to undertake NEBOSH and IOSH training courses. All senior operational directors and
managers are encouraged to obtain qualification to NEBOSH certificate level. Idverde also has a policy of
ensuring that every operational or contract manager is qualified to IOSH level and has a continuous training
programme to maintain this with new employees and as new managers join on new contracts. 206 Managers
were trained to this standard in the winter period of 2021/2022 to maintain this level.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (SECR)

Energy usage and greenhouse gas emissions reported here are for the year ended 31 December 2022. Idverde
continued to partner with One Carbon World Ltd to verify our carbon footprint and are pleased to report a
consecutive reduction of carbon intensity of direct emissions. We remain committed to keeping carbon
management at the top of our business priorities, alongside providing nature based solutions for our clients to
fight climate change and address global biodiversity loss.

Energy Usage

Source kWh
Electricity 2,213,599
Gas 1,238,360
Burning oil 50,158
Transport (Liquid Fuels & Business miles) 70,337,680
Total energy usage 73,839,797
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idverde UK Limited
Group Strategic Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Carbon Emissions

The above energy and fuel use equates to 17,420.65 tCO2e (direct emissions cnly emissions). A breakdown of
these emission by scope is shown below alongside indirect emissions figures.

GHG Protocol Scope Tons COZ2e
Scope 1 16,992.58
Scope 2 428.07

For the purposes of iMustrating a ‘carbon intensity’, this equates to 81.06 tCOZ2e per £1m turnover. This is a
12.7% decrease on the 2020 baseline carbon intensity.

Footprint Period: 2022 Like-for-Like Assessment (Scopes 1+2 only)

On an absolute basis, the total aggregated scope 142 emissions in 2022 were stated as 17,420.65 tCO2e
compared to 16,836 tCO2e in 2021. A 5.7% increase in turnover occurred over the same pericd, so on a relative
basis, the total scope 1+2 emissions in 2022 were stated as 81.06 tCO2e per £1m turnover compared to 82.81 (-
2.1%) in 2021.

Methodology

The company defines the emissicn boundary for this report as ail source emissions arising from company
activities that are within the company’s operational control including the activities taking place at occupied
properties and that of the entire working vebhicle fleet used by the company (the vast majority of idverde's
services are delivered by its own direct resources).

Emissions factors and guidance frem the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has
been used to calculate all material carbon emissions covering scopes 1 + 2 for which the Company considers
itself 10 be responsible for. ’

The methodology used meets the reporting requirements of the Green House Gas (GHG) Protocol Corporate
Standard.

Energy efficiency action and mitigation (Jan to Dec 2022)

. Replacement of internal combustion engine (ICE) machinery with electric powered alternatives on a
number of large grounds maintenance contracts

. Deployment of light commercial etectric vans into our fleet

. Successful business development in Sclihull, The Royal Parks and other services resulted in further

investment in
- Further electric battery powered machinery and equipment
- Further orders placed for electric light commercial vehicles and EV cars
- The asset pool now includes 25 Electric and 41 Hybrid vehicles
- Alternative fuel introduced, reducing or replacing the use of diesel on those contracts

. Further investment in all these areas within existing fleet and equipment operations
. Driver awareness training
* Vehicle idling maonitoring and training
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idverde UK Limited

Group Strategic Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Ongoing Action

Amongst our activities this reporting year idverde have:

. Continued our campaign to reduce fuel consumption as a result of driving techniques and speeds

. Expanding the use of vehicle tracking and telematics to greater support energy efficiency targets

. Renewed our membership to the UN Climate Neutral Now initiative and have committed to continually
measure, minimise and mitigate our emissions

. Initiated the development of an updated sustainability strategy and a practical net zero plan

. Have trained 6 colleagues fo be Climate Fresk Facilitators, which has enabled ceriified in-house training,

and have commenced the training of all office based, management and administration staff (includes
300+ colleagues)

Carbon Neutrality and Tree planting initiatives

Whilst our focus for improvement needs to continue to be aimed at the development of longer-term Net Zero
plans for the future, idverde recognises that by offsetting our direct emissions, we can also help in mitigating the
impacts of the emissions that result from our work today.

Whilst it is not the solution to this challenge, for 2022 we have continued to retire carbon credits within UN-
backed offsetting schemes to maintain our position of carbon neutrality with respect to our direct (Scope 1 & 2)
emissions. Given that most emissions offsetting schemes of this type are in developing ecochomies overseas, we
are also keen to suppoert UK based environmental initiatives so to this end, we have continued our support of the
RFS’s National Forest tree planting schemes with additional investment in a further 5000 trees. We see
schemes such as this as key to ensuring that tree planting initiatives that we support are sustainable and
supported with the correct stewardship and management programmes. All of the tree planting we support is in
addition to the offsetting through the formal UN backed programme.

Directors® statement of compliance with duty to promote the success of the group

The directors have acted in the way they consider, in gocd faith, promotes the success of the group for the
benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have given regard to {amongst other matters):

Business relationships

The need to build strong long-standing relationships with both our customers and suppliers is paramount to the
success of the group and its longevity. We continually develop strategies to maintain and grow our client base
and further improve relationship with our suppliers. With respect to suppliers the group’s policy for the payment
of suppliers is to agree to terms of payment in advance in line with normal trade practices and, provided a
supplier performs in accordance with the agreement, to abide by such terms.

Our people

The group is committed to being a responsible business. Our behaviour is aligned with the expectations of our
pecple, customers, shareholders, communities, and society as a whole. People are at the heart of delivering
quality specialist services both internally and externally. For our business to continue to succeed we continually
manage our peoples’ performance and develop and bring through talent while ensuring we operate as efficiently
as possible.

Disabled employees

The company gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the
requirements of the job can be adequately fulfiled by a handicapped or disabled person. Where existing
employees became disabled, it is the company’s policy wherever practicable to provide continuing employment
under normal terms and conditions and to provide training, career development and promotion to disabled
employees wherever appropriate.
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idverde UK Limited

Group Strategic Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Employee involvement

During the period, the policy of providing employees with information about the group has been continued
through internal media methods in which employees have also been encouraged to present their suggestions
and views on the group’s performance. Regular meetings are held between local management and employees to
allow a free flow of information and ideas.

Community, charity and environment

The group’s approach is to use our long-standing position tc create positive change for the pecple and
communities we interact with through a number of initiatives.

Culture and values

The group recognises the importance of having the right corporate culture. Cur long-term success depends on
achieving our strategic goals the right and fair way, so we look after the best interests of our shareholders,
customers, people, suppliers, and other stakeholders.

Shareholders

The management is committed and openly engaged with our shareholders through regular Board Meetings and
effective dialogue. The shareholders and their representatives are actively engaged in understanding our
strategy, culture, people, and the performance of our shared objectives for the short, mid and longer terms.

Political donations

The group does not make any donations to any political party or organisation.

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by:

A M Pollins

Director
Date: 29 September 2023
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idverde UK Limited

Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Directors' responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Report, Directors' Report and the consolidated
financial statements, in accordance with applicable law.

Company law requires the directors to prepare consolidated financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law they have elected to prepare the consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the UK.

Under company law the directors must not approve the consclidated financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit
or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are required
to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the UK, subject to any

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. assess the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

. use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but toc do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the parent Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the parent Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably cpen to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors consider that the Group Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the group's
and company's position and performance, business model and strategy.

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying
third party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in
force throughout the last financial year and is currently in force. The Company maintained throughout the
financial year Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and its Directors, via a group policy
purchased and maintained by idverde SAS which covers the directors and officers of the policyholder and all its
subsidiaries including idverde UK Ltd and its subsidiaries.
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idverde UK Limited

Directors' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Results and dividends
The loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to £21,565,000 (2021 - loss £31,347,000).
Going concern

ldverde UK Limited and its UK subsidiaries are directly and indirectly funded by a Luxembourg parent company
Armorica Lux Sarl through inter-company arrangements which are repayable in the future periods. No significant
cash or external borrowings are held in the UK. Due to this, the company is reliant on support and has received a
letter of support frem Armorica Lux Sarl, indicating that it will continue to make funds available to the company
and will not seek repayment of any amounts owed, where such repayment could impair the liquidity of the
company. This will enable to the company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
letter covers a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements. The directors have
assured the ability of the Lux parent company to provide support and in doing so reviewed the going concern
assessment of the Lux parent company. The Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully
despite the current uncertain economic outlock.

Employees

During the year, the Group continued to develop its 'grow our own' strategy of attracting and developing talent at
all levels within the business. This positive investment by the group has helped to address the industry wide skills
shortage.

The Accelerated Leadership Programme (ALP) and Management Development Programme (MDP) enable the
group to continually develop the management of people within the business. These programmes educate and
guide managers in leadership styles, their own work preferences, the impact of their management on others and
the link between good quality leadership, employee engagement and performance. This has resulted in
progression to senior management rcles for a number of developing managers during the year.

Training and up-skiling amongst Operatives continues to be delivered through the continuation of offering
various apprenticeships / qualifications / e-learning / internal & external training. Idverde's commitment to
ensuring that its attraction strategy to offer training and development under apprenticeship schemes continues to
develop, and ldverde has notably established an industry leading development centre for its colleagues,
Performance Campus.

Matters covered in the Group strategic report

The directors have prepared a separate Group Strategic Report incorporating consideration of the Group's
suppliers, customers, employees and others.

Directors
The directors who served during the year were:

A K Gomm (resigned 27 June 2023)

S Huxley

J H R Groleau ({resigned 4 January 2023)
C M Pullen (resigned 2 March 2022)

K B Lennard (appointed 2 March 2022)

Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Idverde UK Limited (the “Group”) and its subsidiaries (including main
trading subsidiaries ldverde Limited, T.C Landscapes Ltd) has adopted the Wates Corporate Govemnance
Principles for Large Private Companies and has applied all the principles of the code. The Wates Corporate
Governance Principles for Large Private Companies serves as the framework to demonstrate how Directors
have regard for the matters set out in section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act when performing their duties.
Each of the Six Wates Principles has been considered individually within the context of the Company's specific
circumstances and a short explanation below as to how each principle has been applied.
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idverde UK Limited

Directors’ Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The members of the Board {the “Directors”) have set out below an explanation of how the Wates Corporate
Governance Principles are applied.

An effective board develops and promotes the purpose of a company, and ensures that its values,
strategy and culture align with that purpose.

ldverde UK Limited (“ldverde” ur “Group") is a haolding company for the UK trading group. ldverde is a leading
provider of specialist green services, grounds maintenance, parks management, arboriculture, cleansing,
facilities management, consultancy, playground and sports & landscape creation services.

Idverde wins the majority of its income by tendering for, and the delivery of, long-term maintenance contracts. It
has an enviable record for the quality of its service delivery and consequently for retaining contracts when they
come up for extension and renewal. The strategy to expand ldverde’s presence and offer a truly national service
delivered via directly employed colleagues is now a demonstrable quality USP in the market.

{dverde continues to foilow its four point strategy for growth, namety:

. Retaining and renewing existing contracts through the continued delivery of a quality service using a
directly employed service provision;

. Organic growth via new contracts;

. Acquisitive growth from selective strategic acquisitions; and

. Continued development of its people, processes and systems.

The Group recognises the importance of having the right corporate culture. Our long-term success depends on
achieving our strategic goals the right and fair way, so we [ook after the best interests of our shareholders,
customers, people, suppliers, and other stakeholders.

The directors have acted in the way they consider, in good faith, promotes the success of the Group for the
benefit of its members as a whole.

The Group has a clearly communicated Mission, Vision and Values.
Our Mission:

Creating and maintaining landscapes for our clients, employing colleagues who are motivated to do their best, in
an enyironment where they fee] valued and proud to work for ldverde.

Our Vision:

To be the provider of choice for creating and maintaining landscapes for businesses and communities.

Our Values:

Collaboration, Integrity, Innovation, Respect, Responsibility and Focus, are at the heart of everything we do.
Effective board composition requires an effective chair and a balance of skills, backgrounds, experience
and knowledge, with individual directors having sufficient capacity to make a valuable contribution. The
size of a board should be guided by the scale and complexity of the company.

The chair of the Board, who is nominated in each meeting, leads the Board and is responsible for its overall
effectiveness, promoting open debate and facilitating constructive and meaningful conversation. Other members
of the management team and other internal subject matter experts are invited to Board meetings to update and

advise the Directors as and when needed. The Board meetings are joined by in-house legal counsel and the
Company Secretary.

The hoard consists of members with a diverse range of skills, expertise and experience including finance and
acceunting, human resources, and business development. The size and structure of the board is adequate to the
scale and complexity of the Company and Group.
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idverde UK Limited

Directors’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The Group assists the Board's professicnal development and growth, providing regular training and supporting
development opportunities.

The board and individual directors should have a clear understanding of their accountabilify and
responsibilities. The board’s policies and procedures should support effective decision-making and
independent challenge.

The Board meets throughout the reporting year to review current business performance, discuss sirategic
projects, people, quality and health and safety, and analyse key risks and opportunities. Key information is
collated by the Group’s finance function. Financial information is audited on an annual basis by the Group's
external auditors. Internal controls and processes are routinely reviewed. Other key information is prepared by
the relevant business functions and internal specialists within the Company and presented to the board as
necessary.

Directors are required to act in the best interest of the Group and comply with company policies around Code of
Conduct including promoting ethical behaviours, leading by example and acting in compliance with laws and
regulations, including their statutory duties under the Companies Act 2006 (CA 2006).

A board should promote the long-term sustainable success of the company by identifying opportunities
to create and preserve value, and establishing oversight for the identification and mitigation of risks.

The Group established and maintains corporate governance and compliance practices, providing clear lines of
accountability and responsibility to support effective decision making, including third party engagements, contract
signing policies, authority and approval processes, and communication channels.

Members of the board participate in monthly business reviews with key functional leaders to review business
performance in light of long-term strategic plans, opportunities and decision making.

Idverde's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in market prices,
credit risk and liquidity risk. Idverde has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse
effects on its financial performance, by monitoring levels of debt finance and the related finance costs. Given the
size of ldverde, the directors have not delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial risk management to a
sub-committee of the Board. The policies set out by the board of directors are implemented by |dverde's central
finance department.

Idverde regularly assesses risks that impact on the business. This includes our processes and procedures in
relation to quality and health and safety. Idverde has maintained its full accreditation for 1IS09001, 15014001 and
15045001, As part of our Integrated Management System, |dverde conducts regular risk assessments and
audits with management committed to improving controls and processes. ldverde's Leadership team regularly
reviews the outcomes of such risk assessments together with related health and safety matters. All senior
operational directors and managers are encouraged to obtain qualification to NEBOSH certificate level.

A board should promote executive remuneration structures aligned to the long-term sustainable
success of a company, taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the company.

The Group is committed to being a responsible business. Our behaviocur and remuneration is aligned with the
expectations of our people, customers, shareholders, communities, and society as a whole. People are at the
heart of delivering quality specialist services beth internally and externally. For our business to continue to
succeed we continually manage our peoples’ performance and develop and bring through talent while ensuring
we operate as efficiently as possible.

Appropriate and fair levels of remuneration of executive and senior management is essential to delivering on this
commitment. Remuneration structures are aligned with performance, behaviours, purpose, values and culture,
and the delivery and achievement of strategy to support long term and sustainable success. The Group
considers compensation paid by similar companies as a reference point.
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idverde UK Limited

Directors’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Directors should foster effective stakeholder relationships aligned to the company’s purpose. The board
is responsible for overseeing meaningful engagement with stakeholders, including the workforce, and
having regard to their views when taking decisions.

The nheed to build strong long-standing relationships with both our customers and suppliers is paramount to the
success of the Group and its langevity. We continually develop strategies to maintain and grow our client base
and further improve relationship with our suppliers.

The Board and the leadership team regularly present to the senior leaders within the Idverde UK group and
discuss business performance, sirategy and decisions in the regular management meetings. The international
leadership team of the ultimate parent company also receive similar updates.

The policy of providing employees with information about the Group has been continued through internal media
methods in which employees have also been encouraged to present their suggestions and views on the Group’s
performance. Regular meetings are held between local management and employees to allow a free flow of
information and ideas.

The Group's approach is to use our long-standing position to create positive change for the people and
communities we interact with through a number of initiatives. The Idverde Community Investment Fund aims to
empower local people to deliver sought-after projects that improve their local green space or the public realm,
enhance the local environment and boost the wellbeing of local people. The ldverde Community Investment
Fund, which grants up to £40,000 per year to support community-led projects in the areas where we work.
Funding can be granted for a variety of projects and activities, including promotion, marketing, and education, as
well as practical equipment and running costs.

We remain commitied to keeping carbon management at the top of our business priorities alongside providing
nature based solutions for our clients to fight climate change and address global biodiversity loss.

The management is committed and openly engaged with our shareholders through regular Board Meetings and
effective dialogue. The shareholders and their representatives are actively engaged in understanding our
strategy, culture, people, and the performance of our shared objectives for the short, mid and longer terms.

The Group website provides extensive and up to date news on racent developments for internal and external
stakeholders.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors’ Report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company and the
Group's auditors are unaware, and

. the director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a directer in order to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company and the Group’s auditors are aware of that
information.

The auditers, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, will be proposed for reappeointment in accordance with section 485
of the Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by:

At~

A M Pollins
Director
Date: 29 September 2023
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idverde UK Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the
members of idverde UK Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

in our opinion, idverde UK Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’'s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the
group’s loss and the group’s cash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Financial Statements (the "Annual Report”), which comprise:
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022;
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Censolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consclidated
Statement of Cash Filows, Ccnsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Company Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually ar collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company'’s ability to continue as a going concem
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial stalements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's
and the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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idverde UK Limited

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the informaticn in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other informaticn. Qur opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other Information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears lo be materially misstaled. If we identify an appareni material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures 1o conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Direclors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions
and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’'s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statcments

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with

our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.
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Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to UK tax legislation, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect
on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives and oppertunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks
were related to posting of unusual journal entries or manipulating accounting estimates which could be subject to
management bias. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

« Enquiry of group and local management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and
claims;

« Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

« Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with applicable
faws and regulations; and

« Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other adjustments for
approprialeness, at the group and component level, and testing accounting estimates {(because of the risk of management
bias).

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Alseo, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and anly for the company’'s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received fram branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

kg

Richard Kay (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behaif of PricewaterhouseCoocpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Birmingham

29 September 2023
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idverde UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Non-underlying costs

Operating loss

Finance expense
Other finance (expense)/income

Loss before tax

Tax credit

Loss for the year

The notes on pages 22 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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2022 2021
Note £000 £000
6 219,070 203,334
(202,828)  (192,659)
16,242 10,675
(25,939) (35,277)
11 (6,401) (3,244)
7 (16,098) (27,846)
12 (9,874) (8,844)
(1,083) 188
(27,055) (36,502)
13 5,490 5,155
(21,565) (31,347)
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Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Loss for the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes

Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive expense

The notes on pages 22 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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26

2022 2021
£000 £000
(21,565) (31,347)
1,524 (61)
1,524 (61)
(381) 8
(381) 8
1,143 (53)
(20,422) (31,400}




idverde UK Limited
Registered number: 06539986

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

Assets

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Gaodwill

Employee benefit assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Employee benefit liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Current liabilities

Trade and other liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Provisions

Total liabilities

Net liabilities
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Note

14
15
16
26
13

19
20

22
26
13

21
22
23

2022 2021
£000 £000
37,574 35,020
3,997 7,885
67,647 67,647
1,727 -
10,729 7,129
121,671 117,681
2,266 3,436
44,675 63,375
2,550 5,008
49,491 71,819
171,162 189,500
105,795 103,984
. 44
3,332 1,047
109,127 105,075
57,761 89,178
47,455 16,892
. 1,114
105,216 107,184
214,343 212,259
(22.759)

(43,181}



idverde UK Limited
Registered number: 06539986

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Issued capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 24 16,721 16,721
Share premium reserve 15,837 15,837
Retained earnings (75,739) (565,317)
(43,181) (22,759)
TOTAL EQUITY (43,181} (22,759)

The financial statements on pages 14 to 67 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

and were signed on its behalf by

Director
Date; 29 September 2023

The notes on pages 22 to 67 form part of these financial statements.

Page 17




idverde UK Limited
Registered number: 06539986

Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 18 16,740 16,740
16,740 16,740
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 20 55,702 56,747
55,702 56,747
Total assets 72,442 73,487
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 53,659 53,406
53,659 53,406
Current liabilities
Trade and other liabilities 21 11,375 17,820
Loans and borrowings 22 12,955 1,572
24,330 19,392
Total liabilities 77,989 72,798
Net (liabilities)/assets (5,547) 689
Issued capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 24 16,721 16,721
Share premium reserve 15,837 15,837
Retained earnings {38,105) (31,869)
TOTAL EQUITY {5,547) 689

The Company's loss for the year was £5,946,000 (2021 - £8,651,000).

The financial statements on pages 14 to 67 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
and were signed on its behalf by

(AL
AM Pollins

Director
Date: 29 September 2023

The notes on pages 22 to 67 form part of these financial statements.

Page 18



idverde UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 Decembher 2022

At1 January 2021

Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense

Total comprehensive expense for
the year

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022

Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive expense for
the year

At31 December 2022

Total
attributable
to equity
Share Share Retained holders of
capital premium earnings parent Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
16,721 15,837 (23,917} 8,641 8.641
- - (31,347) (31,347) {31,347)
] ] (53) (63) (53)
- - {31,400) {31,400) {31,400)
16,721 15,837 (55,317) (22,759) (22,759)
16,721 15,837 (55,317) (22,759) {22,759)
- - (21,565) (21,565) (21,565)
- - 1,143 1,143 1,143
- - (20,422) (20,422) (20,422)
16,721 15,837 (75,739) (43,181) (43,181)

The notes on pages 22 to 67 form part of these financial statements.

Page 19



idverde UK Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Share Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
At1 January 2021 16,721 15,837 (?3,218) 9.340
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - {8,651) (8.651)
Other comprehensive expense - - - -
- - 8,651 8,651
Total comprehensive expense for the year (8.657) ¢ )
At 31 December 2021 16,721 15,837 (31,869) 689
At 1 January 2022 16,721 15,837 (31,869) 689
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - (5.9486) (5,946)
Other comprehensive expense - - (290) (250)
' - - 6,236 6,236
Total comprehensive expense for the year ( ) ( )
15,837 (5,547)

At 31 December 2022 16,721

The notes on pages 22 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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idverde UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year
Adjustments for

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Finance expense

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Income tax credit

Movements in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/{increase) in inventories

{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
{Decrease)/increase in provisions and employee benefits

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash from/{used in} financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 22 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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Note

14
15
12

13

2022 2021
£000 £000
(21,565) (31,347)
11,942 15,207
3,888 5,266
9,874 8,844
2,083 1,949
(5,490) {5,155}
732 (5,146)
18,699 (13,617)
1,170 {1,173}
(27.623) 38,872
(1,361) 480
(8,383) 19,416
- (5,102)
(8,383) 14,314
(16,576) (16,000)
{16,576) {16,000)
22,501 101,430
- (94,840)
. (8.844)
22,501 (2.254)
(2,458) (3,940)
5,008 8,048
2,550 5,008




idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

1.

Reporting entity

idverde UK Limited (the 'Company') is a limited company incorporated in England in the UK. The
Company's registered office is Octavia House, Westwood Way, Westwood Business Park, Coventry, CV4
8JP. These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
'Group' and individually "Group companies’}. The Group is primarily invelved in providing specialist green
services, delivering grounds management, arboriculture, cleansing, park management and consultancy,
facilities management and sports & landscape creation services.

Basis of preparation

The Group's consolidated and the Company's individual financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as adopted by the UK {collectively IFRSs). They were authorised for issue by the
Company's board of directors on 29 September 2023.

Details of the Group's accounting policies, including changes during the year, are included in note 4.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 and elected not to present its own Profit and Loss Account or Statement of Comprehensive Income
in these financial statements.

in preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Group accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively,

The areas where judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and their effects are disclosed in note 5.
Correction of error in revenue classification

The Group has identified an error in the presentation of revenue by stream in the prior year. This has
resulted in a material presentational change, and the error has been corrected by restating each of the
revenue streams in the prior year as follows:

2021 2021
{as previously reported) (as restated)

£000 £000

Grounds maintenance 185,603 154,853
Landscape construction 17,731 48,481

203,334 203,334

There is no impact on the total revenue, loss for the prior year or net assets as previously reported a
result of this change.

2.1 Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation
of certain assets. The measurement basis for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value is details
in the accounting policies. Historical cost is general based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for the assets.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies _
i) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2022

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The Group has adopted the amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations for the first time in the current
year. The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the
1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for cbligations within the scope of IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether
at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2,

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
i) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2022 {continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeeds before Intended Use

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment for the first time in the
current year. The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds
while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Consequently, an entity recognises such sales proceeds and related
costs in profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of 'testing whether an asset is functioning properly'. IAS 16 now
specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the asset is such that it is
capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements shall
disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items produced that are
not an cutput of the entity's ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the statement of comprehensive
income include(s) such proceeds and cost.

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets for the first time in the current year. The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts {an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

The Group has adopted the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting
Standards 2018-2020 Cycle for the first time in the current year. The Annual Improvements include
amendments to four standards.

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a firsttime adopter later than its
parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of the amendment, a
subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a) can now aiso elect to measure cumulative translation
differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount that would be included in the parent's
consolidated financial statements, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS Accounting Standards,
if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination
in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is available to an assaciate or joint venture
that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:D16(a).

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The amendment clarifies that in applying the '10 per cent' test to assess whether to derecognise a

financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

Page 23




idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2,

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies {continued)

i} New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2022 {continued)
IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

The following standards and interpretations to published standards are not yet effective:

New standard or EU Endorsement status Mandatory effective date
interpretation {period beginning)
IFRS 17 (including the June Insurance Contracts Effective from 1.1.2023

2020 and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to I1AS 1 Disciosure of Accounting Effective from 1.1.2023
Presentation of Financial Policies

Statements and IFRS

Practice Statement 2 Making

Material Judgements

Amendments to 1AS 8 Definition of Accounting Effective from 1.1.2023
Accounting Policies, Changes Estimates

in Accounting Estimates and

Errors

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Deferred Tax related to Assets Effective from 1.1.2023
Taxes and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the new Standard and amendments to the existing
Standards listed above will have a material impact on the consoclidated financial statements of the Group
in future periods, except if indicated below.

Insurance Contracts and Amendments to IFRS 17

(Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 oullines a general model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct participation
features, described as the variable fee approach. The general model is simplified if certain criteria are
met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium allocation approach.

The general model will use current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of future
cash flows and it will explicitly measure the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account market interest
rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guarantees.

In June 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 17 to address concerns and implementation
challenges that were identified after [FRS 17 was published. The amendments defer the date of initia!
application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) to annual reporting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2023.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2, Basis of preparation {continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

i) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2022 (continued)

In December 2021, the IASB issued Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9—Comparative Information
(Amendment to IFRS 17) o address implementation challenges that were identified after \FRS 17 was
published. The amendment addresses challenges in the presentation of comparative information.

IFRS 17 must be applied retrospectively unless impracticable, in which case the modified retrospective
approach or the fair value approach is applied.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial application is the start of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the beginning of the
period immediately preceding the date of initial application.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

(Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023}

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendments replace all instances of the term 'significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting
policy information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information that
relates 1o immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed.
Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.

The IASB has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the
‘four-step materiality process’ described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.

The amendments to |IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
earlier application permitted by the 1ASB and are applied prospectively. The amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 do not contain an effective date or transition requirements.

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —
Definition of Accounting Estimates

(Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The definition of a change in accounting estimates was
deleted. However, the IASB retained the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the Standard with
the following clarifications:

. A change in acceunting estimate that resuits from new information or new developments is not the
correction of an error

. The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting
estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior pericd
errors.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2,

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

i) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2022 {continued}

The IASE added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance on implementing IAS 8, which
accompanies the Standard. The IASB has deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause confusion
in light of the amendments.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 to changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the beginning of that
period, with earlier application permitted by the IASB.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes —Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

{Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023}

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the
amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may arise on
initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon recognition of a lease liability and
the corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at the commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to recognise the related deferred tax asset and
liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in 1AS 12,

The IASB also adds an illustrative example to IAS 12 that explains how the amendments are applied. The
amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an entity recognises:

. A deferred tax asset {to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

- Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
- Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related asset

. The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
earlier application permitted by the IASB.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements in future periods should such transactions arise.
Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in pound sterling, which is the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

4,

Accounting policies

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
{including structured entities) controlied by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use iis power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Cempany considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the

current ability to direct the relevant activities at this time that decisions need to be made, including
vating patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-conftrolling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consclidation.
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4.

Accounting policies {continued)
41 Basis of consclidation {(continued)
Changes in the Group's ownership Interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideraticn paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and its
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred tc another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent account under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

4.2 Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Group Strategic Report at the beginning of these accounts.
The financial position of the Group is set out in the Consoclidated Balance Sheet on page 17 and its cash
flows in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement on page 21. Details of the Group’s borrowings and
financial instruments are set out in note 21.

Idverde UK Limited and its UK subsidiaries are directly and indirectly funded by a Luxembourg parent
company Armorica Lux Sarl through inter-company arrangements which are repayable in the future
periods. No significant cash or external borrowings are held in the UK. Due to this, the company is reliant
on support and has received a letter of support from Armorica Lux Sarl, indicating that it will continue to
make funds available to the company and will not seek repayment of any amounts owed, where such
repayment could impair the liquidity of the company. This will enable to the company to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The letter covers a period of at least 12 months from the
date of signing the financial statements. The directors have assured the ability of the Lux parent company
to provide support and in doing so reviewed the going concern assessment of the Lux parent company.
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Accounting policies {continued)
4.3 Revenue

Revenue from service contracts represents the fair value of work performed in connection with grounds
maintenance services, excluding value added tax. Revenue from long term landscape construction
projects is accounted for under the principles of long term contract accounting and is recognised on the
basis of an assessment of fair value of works performed, exclusive of value added tax. Differences
between this and amounts invoiced are held as amounts recoverable on contract or payments on account.
Full provision for loss-making contracts is made for any foreseeable losses. In general payment terms are
agreed in the service contract and paid promptly by local authority clients.

In determining fair value, censideration is given to pricing, ameount of work done and expected future
costs.

An entity need not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if the entity expects, at contract inception, that the period between when the entity transfers a
promised good of service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one
year or less.

44 Construction contract debtors

Construction contract debtors represent the gross unbilled amount for contract work performed to date. It
is measured at cost plus profit recognised to date (see the revenue accounting policy) less a provision for
foreseeable losses and iess progress billings. Variations are inciuded in contract revenue when they are
reliably measurable and it is probable that the customer will approve the variation itself and the revenue
arising from the variation. Claims are included in contract revenue only when they are reliably measurable
and negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept
the claim. Cost includes all expenditure related directly to specific projects and an allocation of fixed and
variable overheads incurred in the Group’s contract activities based on norma! operating capacity.

Construction contract debtors are presented as part of trade and other receivables in the balance sheet. If
payments received from customers exceed the income recognised, then the difference is presented as
deferred income in the balance sheet.

45 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low-value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is
mare representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannct be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental berrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the iease liability comprise:

. fixed lease payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

The lease liability is included in the 'Loans and borrowings’ line in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.
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Accounting policies {continued)
4.5 Leasing (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are included in the 'Property, Plant and Equipment” line in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.
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4.

Accounting policies (continued)
4.5 Leasing (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The Group applies IAS 36 tc determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in note 4.11.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has
used this practical expedient.

4.6 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in & foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined..

4.7 Gavernment grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants wili be received. In general the Group does not
receive government grants or other government assistance.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Group shouid purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the

purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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Accounting policies {continued)
48 Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution pian is a post-employment benefit ptan under which the company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive cbligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit pian other than a defined contribution plan. The
Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid price) are
deducted. The Group determines the net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on
bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be
paid. Re-measurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The
Group recoghises them immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to
defined benefit plans in employee benefit expenses in profit or loss.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited
to the present value of benefits availabie in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions and takes into account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements.

49 Expenses

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term s0 as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses comprise interest payable and finance leases recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that
are recognised in the income statement.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective

interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to
receive paymenits is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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Accounting policies (continued)
4.10 Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary
differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxabie profit other than in a business combination, and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.,

4.11 Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and equipment so as
to write off their carrying value over their expected useful economic lives. It is provided at the following
rates:

Freehold property 2% to 10% straight line
Leasehold property evenly over term of lease
Plant and machinery 8% - 100% straight line
Motor vehicles 10% - 33% straight line
Fixtures and fittings 10% - 33% straight line

4.12 |Intangible assets

Goodwill
Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is aliocated to cash-
generating units and is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment. in respect of equity accounted
investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee.

Cther intangible assefs

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised in the income statement as an
expense as incurred.
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Accounting policies (continued)
4.12 Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets {continued)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and
goodwill are systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are
amortised from the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

. Customer contracts 8 years
4.13 Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets
Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss
event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be
recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assels
that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated
each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“cash-generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment
testing, is alfocated to cash-generating units, or (“CGU"}. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for
the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated
50 that the fevel at which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in prefit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units,
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.
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Accounting policies {continued)
4.13 Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment less had been recognised.

4.14 Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
a first in, first out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present cbligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

4.16 Financial instruments
Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group

Following the adoption of |AS 32, financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to
the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

(a) they include no contractual cbligations upon the group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the group; and

(b)  where the instrument will or may be settled in the company's own equity instruments, it is either a
non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the company’s own equity
instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the company’s exchanging a fixed amount of
cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability.
Where the instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company's own shares, the amounts
presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude
amounts in relation to those shares.
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Accounting policies {continued)

4.16 Financial instruments (continued)

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value, Subsequent to initial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafis that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing barrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Accounting estimates and judgements
5.1 Judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The nature of the Group's business is such that there can be unpredictable variation and uncertainty
regarding its business. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgements made in respect of IFRS15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is described in
Accounting Policy 4.3.

5.2 Estimates and assumptions
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recegnition and

measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be
substantially different.
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Accounting estimates and judgements {(continued)

5.2 Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Receivables

Due to the nature of some services provided by certain businesses within the Group the recoverability of
receivables can be subject to management estimates. Management estimation is required in measuring
and recognising provisions and otherwise determining the exposure to unrecoverable debts. Sensitivity is
limited through the Group’s credit control procedures and the overall high quality of the Group's customer
base, although it is acknowledged that some custemer concentration can mean that adjustments could be
material. Note 27 includes further detall on recoverability estimates.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

The depreciation charge for an asset is derived using estimates of its expected useful life and expected
residual value, which are reviewed annually. Increasing an asset's expected life or residual vaiue would
result in a reduced depreciation charge in the consolidated income statement.

Management determines the useful lives and residual values for assets when they are acquired, based on
experience with similar assets and taking into account other relevant factors such as any expected
changes in technology or regulations.

Fair value measurement associated with Defined Benefit Schemes

Management uses valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are not available} and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case
management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices
that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date. See sensitivity analysis in note
26.

Deferred tax asset

The Group recognises a deferred tax asset in respect of temporary differences relating to capital
allowances, revenue losses and other short term temporary differences when it considers there is
sufficient evidence that the asset will be recovered against future taxable profits.

Recoverability of goodwill and other non current assets and investment in subsidiaries

The company annually considers whether goodwill and associated non current assets as well as the
Company's investments are impaired. Where an indication of impairment is identified following a trigger
assessment, the determination of the recoverable amount requires estimation.

The carrying value is compared to the recoverable amount, being the higher of the value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposals and adjusted accardingly.

The Directors have determined that the key assumptions are the forecast cashflows, which are
predictedto grow at 385% over the next 5 years, a pre-tax discount rate of 10.6% and long term
growth rate of 2.3%.

The Group CGU, which includes all goodwill and other non-current assets of £113 million is sensitive to a
change in key estimate, where a reduction in forecast cashflow of £1.07 million per annum into perpetuity,
an increase in the discount rate of 0.44% cr a reduction in the long term growth rate of 0.6% would lead to
an impairment.
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Revenue

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing operations:
As restated

2022 2021
£000 £000
Grounds maintenance 177,159 154,853
Landscape construction 41,911 48,481
219,070 203,334
Turnover arises solely within the United Kingdom.
Operating loss
The loss before income tax is stated after charging:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Depreciation 11,942 15,297
Amortisation 3,888 5,266
Foreign exchange differences 1,083 188
Non-underlying costs (see note 11} 6,401 3,244

Auditors® remuneration

During the year, the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditors and their
associates:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Fees payable to the 's auditors and their associates for the audit of the
consolidated and parent Company's financial statements 381 53
Fees payable to the 's auditors and their associates in respect of:
The auditing of accounts of subsidiaries of the Group - 105
All non-audit services not included above - 39
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9. Employee benefit expenses
Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Employee benefit expenses {including directors) comprise;
Wages and salaries 90,934 85,029
Social security costs 8,866 7,508
Other pension costs 2,879 2,959
Expenses related to defined benefit pension plans held by the group 167 188

102,846 95,684

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and centrolling the activities of the Group, including the directors of the Company listed on page 7. and
the Financial Controller of the Company.

2022 2021
£000 £000
Salary 2,330 2,454
Defined contribution scheme costs 53 72
2,383 2,526

Company
Company employee benefits and expenses £nil.

The menthly average number of persons, including the directors, employed by the Group during the year
was as follows:

2022 2021

No. No.

Administrative staff 141 133
Field operational including managers 3,372 3,254
Executive and non-executive directors 10 11

3,523 3,398
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10.

11.

Directors' remuneration

2022 2021
£000 £000
Directors' remuneration 1,398 1,084
Company contributions toe pension plan © 33 28

1,431 1,112
During the year, retirement benefits were accruing to the following number of directors in respect of
qualifying services:

2022 2021

Defined contribution schemes 3 4

During the year ended 31 December 2022 the company made loans to directors amounting to £74,663
for the purpose of acquisition of shares in Armorica Lux Holdings S.C.A. Balance outstanding at of year
£74.663 (2021 £ nil). No interest is payable and the loan is repayable in full at a liquidity event.

The highest paid director's emoluments were as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £000

Total emocluments and amounts receivable under long-term incentive
schemes (excluding shares) 549 343

549 343

Pension contributions included in above were £nil (2021; £nil).

Non underlying costs

In the year ended 31 December 2022 the Group incurred £6,401,000 (2021: £20,662,000) of costs
predominantly related to corrections of historical process and control issues in the group and ongoing
project costs to implement the control environment.
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12.

13.

Finance income and expense

Recognised in profit or loss

Finance expense

Loans and other finance expenses

Total finance expense

Net finance expense recognised in profit or loss

Tax expense

13.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total current tax

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Changes to tax rates

Total deferred tax

Total tax expense

Tax expense excluding tax on sale of discontinued cperation and share of
tax of equity accounted associates and joint ventures
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2022 2021
£000 £000
9,874 8,844
9,874 8,844
(9,874) (8,844)
2022 2021
£000 £000
. (624)
(3,794) (728)
(3,794) {1,352)
(5,685) (4,360)
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13.

Tax expense (continued)

13.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss (continued)

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of

corporation tax in the United Kingdom apgplied to losses for the year are as follows:

Loss for the year

Income tax credit/expense (including income tax on associate, joint venture
and discontinued operations)

Loss before income taxes

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate of 19% (2021:19%)
Non-tax deductible amortisation of goodwill and impairment

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goodwill, amortisation
and impairment

Capital allowances for the year in excess of depreciation
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods

Other timing differences leading to an increase/(decrease) in taxation
Effects of tax reliefs and incentives

Movement in deferred tax not recognised

Effect of change in tax rate recognised in the income statement

Total tax expense

Changes in tax rates and factors affecting the future tax charges

2022 2021
£000 £000
(21,564) (31,347)
(5,490) (5.468)
(27,054) (36,815)
(5,140) (6,995)
738 -

1,524 879
(597) 37
(544) (133)

- 536
- (167)
(107} 1,461
(1,364) (1,086)
(5,490) (5,468)

As part of the Finance Bill 2020, which was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020, the corporation tax
main rate is to remain at 19% until 31 March 2023. Following the end of the accounting period, the UK
government have anncunced that the main rate will increase on 1 April 2023 to 25% for companies with
taxable profits above £250,000. Companies with taxable profits below £50,000 will continue to pay at 19%,

and marginal relief will apply between these thresholds.

This change was part of the Finance Bill 2021, which was substantively enacted in May 2021. Deferred
taxes have been measured using rates substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

13.

Tax expense (continued)

13.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive
income

13.3 Deferred tax balances

2022 2021
£000 £000
(381) 8
(381) 8
(381) 8

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the consolidated statement of

financial position:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Tax losses

Other timing differences

At 1 January

Charged to the profit and loss account
Deferred tax on pension costs

Other movements

At 31 December

2022 2021
£000 £000
10,729 7,129
(3,332) (1,047)
7,397 6,082
2022 2021
£000 £000
(3,368) (4,340)
379 2,818
10,701 4,110
(315) 3,494
7,397 6,082
2022 2021
£000 £000
6,082 974
1,696 4,116
(381) 8
- 984
7,397 6,082

Based on future profitability expectations a deferred tax asset has been recognised.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
14.1. Assets held under leases

The net bock value of owned and leased assets included as "Property, plant and equipment” in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Property, plant and equipment owned 19,787 16,411
Right-of-use assets 17,784 18,609
37,571 35,020
information about right-of-use assets is summarised below:
Net book value
2022 2021
£000 £000
Right-of-use assets 17,784 18,609

17,784 18,609

Depreciation charge for the year ended

2022 2021

£000 £000

Right-of-use assets 6,767 6,260
6,767 6,260

Assets held under finance leases are generally covered by a restriction on title in favour of the finance
lease provider. Qbligations to finance lease providers amount to £10,750 at 31 December 2022.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

15. Intangible assets

Group

Cost
At 1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the year - owned

At 31 December 2021
Charge for the year - owned

At 31 December 2022
Net book value

At 1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

The intangible assets relate to customer contracts valued on acquisition.
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Customer
contracts
£000

24,084
24,084
24,084
Customer

contracts
£000

10,933
5,266

16,199
3,888

20,087

13,151
7,885

3,997



idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

16. Goodwill

Group

Cost
Accumulated impairment

Cost
At 1 January

At 31 December

Accumulated impairment
At 1 January

At 31 December
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2022 2021
£000 £000
74,800 74,800
(7,153) (7,153)
67,647 67,647
2022 2021
£000 £000
74,800 74,800
74,800 74,800
7.153 7.153
7,153 7,153




idverde UK Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 Decembher 2022
17. Subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Proportion of ownership
Class of interest and voting power

Name of subsidiary Principal activity shares held by the Group (%)

2022 2021

1} idverde Holdings Limited Holding company Ordinary 100 100
Grounds maintenance and

2) idverde Limited” landscape construction Ordinary 100 100

3) Quadron Services Limited” Grounds maintenance Ordinary 100 100

4) Blythe Valley Limited* Arboriculture services Ordinary 100 100

Grounds maintenance,
arboriculture and traffic

5} KJT Group Limited” management Ordinary 1G0 100
6) Aspho Surfacing Limited* Highway services Ordinary 100 100
7) Assist Solutions Group

Limited* Holding company Ordinary 100 100
8) Assist Support Group Limited* Holding company Ordinary 100 100
9) Assist Managed Services Grounds maintenance and

Limited* arboriculture Ordinary 100 100
10) T.C.L. Holdings {Parent}

Limited Holding company Ordinary 100 100
11) T.C.L. Holdings {Midco)

Limited Helding company Ordinary 100 100
12) T.C.L. Holdings Limited* Holding company Ordinary 100 100
13) lce Watch Limited* Winter maintenance Ordinary 100 100

Grounds maintenance and
14) G Burley & Sons Limited* arboriculture Ordinary 100 100
15) T.C. Landscapes Limited*  Holding company Ordinary 100 100
16) PFG Holdings Limited* Holding company Ordinary 100 100
17) Landscaping Centre

(Holdings) Limited* Holding company Ordinary 100 100
18) Landscaping Services Grounds maintenance and

Limited* landscape construction Ordinary 100 100

* Owned by a subsidiary company

The registered office for all of these companies is Octavia House, Westwood Way, Westwood Business
Park, Coventry,CV4 8JP, other than Landscaping Centre (Holdings) Limited, which is, 181b
Templepatrick Road, Ballyclare, Antrim, BT39 ORA.

All subsidiaries share the same year end as idverde UK Limited.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

18. Investments in subsidiaries

Company

Note

Investments in subsidiary companies 17

19. Inventories

Group

Raw materials and consumables

2022 2021
£000 £000
16,740 16,740
16,740 16,740
2022 2021
£000 £000
2,266 3,436
2,266 3,436

in the directors' opinion the replacement cost of the inventory is not materially different to its carrying

value.
20. Trade and other receivables

Group

Trade receivables

Trade receivables - net

Receivables from related parties

Total financial assets other than cash and cash equivalents classified
as loans and receivables

Accrued income
Prepayments

Total trade and other receivables

Less: current portion - trade receivables
Less: current portion - prepayme nts and accrued income
Less: current portion - receivables from related parties

Total current portion

Total non-current portion
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2022 2021
£000 £000
25,258 43,889
25,258 43,889
1,745 3,516
27,003 47,405
16,561 14,228
1,111 1,742
44,675 63,375
(25,258) (43,8809)
(17,672) (15,970)
(1,745) (3.516)
(44,675) (63.375)




idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

20. Trade and other receivables {continued)

Company
2022 2021
£000 £000
Receivables from related parties 55,702 56,746
Total financial assets other than cash and cash equivalents classified
as loans and receivables 55,702 56,746
Prepayments and accrued income - 1
Total trade and other receivables 55,702 56,747
Total current portion (55,702) (56,747)
21. Trade and other payables
Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Trade payables 15,717 23,761
Payables to related parties 16,229 27,558
Other payables 2,127 1,381
Accruals 18,919 29,298
Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and borrowings, classified
as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 52,992 81,998
Other payables - tax and social security payments 4,769 7,180
Total trade and other payables 57,761 89,178
Less: current portion - trade payables (15,717} (23.761)
Less: current portion - payables to related parties {16,229) (27,558)
Less: current portion - other payables (6,896} (8.561)
Less: current portion - accruals {18,919} {29,298)
Total current portion (57,761} (89,178)

Total non-current position - -
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

21. Trade and other payables (continued)

Company
2022 2021
£000 £000
Payables to related parties 11,359 17,803
Accruals 16 17
Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and borrowings, classified :
as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 11,375 17,820
Less: current portion - payables to related parties (11,359) (17.803)
Less: current portion - accruals {16) (17)
Total current portion (11,375) (17,820)
Total non-current position - -
22. Loans and borrowings
Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Non-current
Parent company loans 87,928 87,514
Lease liabilities 17,867 16,470
105,795 103,984
Current
Parent company loans 37,415 6,879
Lease liabilities 10,040 10,013
47,455 16,892
Total loans and borrowings 153,250 120,876
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

22,

23,

Loans and borrowings {continued)

Company
2022 2021
£000 £000
Non-current
Parent company loans 53,659 53,406
53,659 53,406
Current
Parent company loans 12,955 1,572
12,955 1,672
Total loans and borrowings 66,614 54,978
Provisions
Group
Onerous
contracts
£000
At 1 January 2022 1,114

Utilised during the year (1,114}

At 31 December 2022 -

Onerous contract provisions relate to a number of onerous contracts from existing contracts and those
that have been identified following acquisitions undertaken by the Group.

The cash flows associated with the provisions above are expected to be settled within one year and
therefore are classified as current.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

24. Share capital

Authorised

Shares treated as equity
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

At 1 January and 31 December
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1,672,094,000 1,672,094,000

2021
£000

16,721

1,672,094,000 1,672,094,000

1,672,094,000 1,672,094,000

16,721

2021
£000

16,721



idverde UK Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022
25. Leases
Group
®

Lease liabilities are due as follows:

Not later than cne year

Between one year and five years
Later than five years

Lease liabilities included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December

Non-current
Current

The following amounts in respect of leases have been recognised in profit or ioss:

Interest expense on lease liabilities

2022 2021
£000 £000
10,040 10,013
17,545 15,688
322 782
27,907 26,483
27,907 26,483
17,867 16,470
10,040 10,013
2022 2021
£000 £000
778 359

Right of use assets and their related contracts are primarily in respect of motor vehicles and properties
from which the Group operates. These are fixed term and generally only canceilable by negotiation and
payment of any remaining liability. Finance lease assets are primarily plant and machinery used to
perform the Group services. Note 27 shows the finance lease liability cashflow timing.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

26.

Defined benefit schemes
(i) Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding
idverde Limited

The company spensors the Federated Pension Plan (FPP} which is a funded detined benefit
arrangement. This is a separate trustee administered fund holding the pension plan assets to meet long
term pension liabilities for 11 active members, 18 deferred members and 24 pensioner members as at 5
April 2022. The level of retirement benefit is principally based on salary earned in the last three years of
employment prior to leaving active service and is linked to changes in inflation up to retirement.

The plan is subject to the funding legislation, which came into force on 30 December 2005, outlined in the
Pensions Act 2004. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator, and guidance notes
adopted by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational
pension plans in the UK,

The trustees of the plan are required to act in the best interest of the plan’s beneficiaries. The appointment
of the trustees is determined by the plan’s trust documentation. It is policy that at least cne third of all
trustees should be nominated by the members.

A full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 5 April 2022. The actuarial valuation showed a 98% funding
level. Although there was a deficit at the valuation date, the funding level has improved significantly since
the valuation date and as at 31 January 2023 the Section was expected to be over 150% funded on the
scheme funding valuation. As a consequence, and allowing for the expected de-risking of the investments,
the employer and Trustees have agreed that no deficit contributions are payable.

The calculated overall future service rate, based on market conditicns at 31 January 2023 and allowing for
the expected de-risking of the investment strategy, is 35.5% of pensionable pay, inclusive of member
contributions. The employer and Trustees have agreed that total future service contributions should be
paid at this rate. In addition the company has agreed to pay scheme administrative costs of £3300 per
month, death in service jife insurance premiums and the PPF levy.

For the purposes of IAS19, the actuarial valuation as at 5 April 2022, which was carried out by a qualified
independent actuary, has been updated on an approximate basis to 31 December 2022. There have been
no changes in the valuation methodology adopted for this pericd’s disclosures compared to the previous
period's disclosures,

idverde UK Limited

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for certain past employees and, for eligible
employees, a scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The assets of the pension
schemes are held separately from those of the company, being invested by an independent investment
manager.

The Group's final salary pension scheme is now closed to new entrants. The total contributions per the
schedule of contributions for the year ended 31 December 2022 were £421,000 (2021: £534,000). The
group expects to continue to contribute to the schemes at similar levels next year. Outstanding
contributions payable to the fund at the balance sheet date were £Nil {(2021: £Nil).
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

26.

Defined benefit schemes (continued)

{i) Defined benefit scheme characteristics and funding (continued)

The Group sponsors the plan which is a funded defined benefit arrangement. This is a separate trustee
administered fund holding the pension plan assets to meet long term pensicn liabilities for some 154 past
employees and 225 pensioners at 5 April 2022 (the date of the last triennial funding valuation). The level
of retirement benefit is principally based on the highest annual average pensionable salary over 36
consecutive months in the ten years prior to retirement or withdrawa! and is linked to changes in inflation
up to retirement.

The plan is subject to the funding legislation, which came into force on 30 December 2005, outlined in the
Pensions Act 2004. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator, and Guidance
Notes adopted by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit
occupational pension plans in the UK.

The trustees of the plan are required to act in the best interest of the plan’s beneficiaries. The appointment
of the trustees is determined by the plan's trust documentation.

The defined benefit scheme was established under an irrevocable Deed of Trust by Quadron Services
Limited for its employees and those of subsidiary undertakings. The Deed determines the appointment of
trustees to the fund. The scheme was subsequently transferred {o idverde UK Limited.

A full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 5 April 2022 in accordance with the scheme funding
requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and the funding of the plan is agreed between the Group and the
trustees in line with those requirements. These in particular require the surplus/deficit to be calculated
using prudent, as opposed to best estimate, actuarial assumptions.

This actuarial valuation showed a deficit of £380,000 (a reduction from £2,682,000 at the previous triennial
valuation on 5 April 2019). The Trustee and the Employers have agreed a recovery plan in order to
eliminate the deficit. Under the agreed plan, the Employers will pay contributions of £397,838 per annum
from 6 April 2022 to 5 July 2023, £409,773 per annum 6 April 2023 to 5 July 2023 and £187,000 per
annum 6 July 2023 to 5 November 2024.

Contributions to the defined benefit scheme are determined by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
method. The full actuarial valuation for the scheme as a whole as at 5 April 2022 was updated to 31
December 2022 by a gualified actuary and showed that the market value of the scheme's assets was
£17.6 million (2021: £27.1 million) and that the value of these assets exceed the benefits that had accrued
to memberss.

For the purposes of IAS19 the actuarial valuation as at 5 April 2022, which was carried out by a qualified
Independent actuary, has been updated on an approximate basis to 31 December 2022, There have been
no changes in the valuation methodology adopted for this year's disclosures compared to the previous
year's disclosures except that mortality assumptions have been updated to the latest available data.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

26. Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Composition of plan assets:

Equity

Bonds
Insurance policy
Cash
Derivatives

Total plan assets

Defined benefit costs

Service cost - current
Expenses
interest cost

Included in profit or loss

Remeasurement loss/(gain}
Actuarial loss/(gain) from:

- Demographic assumptions

- Financial assumptions

- Adjustments (expenses)

Return on plan assets (excluding interest)

Included in other comprehensive income
Other movements

Balance at 31 December
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2022 2021
£000 £000
2,071 1,647
- 861
1,173 1,087
25 32
817 -
4,086 3,627
2022 2021
£000 £000
161 152
36 27
1 2
198 181
(3) Q)
(1,728) 169
238 33
(321) (283)
{1,814) (88)
(1,616) 93




idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

26. Defined benefit schemes (continued)
Actuarial assumption

The principal actuarial assumptions used in the determining calculating the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (weighted average) include:

2022 2021
Discount rate 5.00 % 1.60 %
Inflation (RPI) 3.20% 3.50 %
Inflation (CPI) 2.75 % 3.00 %

130% of the standard
tables S3PxA, Year of 130% of the standard tables
Birth, no age rating S3PxA, Year of Birth, no
projected using CMI_2021  age rating projected using
converging to CMI_2020 converging to

Post-retirement mortality assumption 1.25 % pa. 1.25 % p.a.
Salary growth 2.00% (4% in 2023 & 2024) 2.00 %
Longevity at retirement age (current

pensioners)
- Males 20.2 years 20.2 years
- Females 22.6 years 22.5 years
Longevity at retirement age (future

pensioners)
- Males 21.5 years 21.5 years
- Females 24.1 years 24.0 years

The mortality assumptions adopted 31 December 2022 imply the following life expectancies:

Life expectancy at age 65 years

Male refiring in 2022 20.2
Female retiring in 2022 225
Male retiring in 2042 21.5
Female retiring in 2042 24.0

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 31 December was 13.5 years (2027: 20
years).

Sensitivity analysis

The impact to the value of the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one actuarial
assumption, holding all other assumption content, is presented in the table below:

Defined benefit obligation

Reasonably
possible
Actual assumption change Increase Decrease
Discount rate (-1+ 0.25%) 2,441 (2.441)
Price inflation (+/- 0.25%) 2,440 (2,440)
Salary increase rate (+/- 0.25%) 2,371 (2.371)
{+~ 1 year age
Future mortality rates rating) 2,419 (2,419)
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

26. Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Composition of plan assets:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Equity 2,872 11,089
Gilts/LDI 4,558 4,146
Divested growth fund/target return funds 9,795 11,526
Insured annuities 199 256
Cash 153 41
Total plan assets 17,577 27,058
Defined benefit costs

2022 2021

£000 £000
Administration expenses 131 161
Interest cost (48) m
Impact of surplus restriction 48 1
Included in profit or loss 131 161
Remeasurement loss/(gain)
Actuarial loss/(gain} from:
- Demographic assumptions (17) (52)
- Financial assumptions (8.376) 369
- Adjustments (expenses) (277) (369)
Return on plan assets (excluding interest) 9,632 (2,258)
Iimpact of surplus restriction (48) (1)
Change in asset ceiling {excluding interest) {624) 2,459
Included in other comprehensive income 290 148
Other movements - -

Balance at 31 December 421 309
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

26. Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Actuarial assumption

The principal actuarial assumptions used in the determining calculating the present value of the defined

benefit cbligation {weighted average) include:

Discount rate
Inflation (RPI)
Inflation (CPI)

2022
4.90 %
375 %
3.00 %

100% of the S3PMA and
. S3PFA tables, using

CMI_2021 Core

Improvements and a

Post-retirement mortality assumption

Rate of increase for non-GMP pensions in
deferment

Longevity at retirement age (current
pensioners)

- Males
- Females

Longevity at retirement age {future
pensioners}

- Males
- Females

1.25 % p.a.

improvement rate

3.00 %

22.1 years
24.4 years

23.4 years
25.8 years

2021
1.80 %
3.60 %

275 %
100% of the S3PMA and
S3PFA tables, using
CMI_2021 Core
Improvements and a
1.25 % p.a.
improvement rate

275 %

21.9 years
24.3 years

23.3 years
25.8 years

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 37 December was 13.0 years (2021: 17.

years).

Sensitivity analysis

The impact to the value of the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one
actuarial assumption, holding all other assumption content, is presented in the table below:

Reasonably possible

Actual assumption change
Discount rate (-/+ 0.25%)
Increase in inflation {+/- 0.25%)
Life expectancy
Future mortality rates increased by 1 year
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

27.  Financial instruments - fair values and risk management
Financial risk management objectives

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss tc the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s trade receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets at the statement of financial position date was as follows:

Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Trade and other receivables 44,675 63,375
Cash and cash equivalents 2,550 5,008
47,225 68,383
Company
2022 2021
£000 £000
Trade and other receivables 55,702 56,746
Cash and cash equivalents - -
55,702 56,746
Credit quality of financial assets and impairment losses
The ageing of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was:
Group
2022 2021
. Net of ' Net of
Gross impairment ‘Gross impairment
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not past due 14,992 14,992 17,025 17,025
Past due 0 - 30 days 4,871 4,871 7,800 7,800
Past due 30 - 120 days ] . 1,956 1,956 12,087 12,087
Past due more than 120 days 6,680 3,439 11,023 7,049
28493 25,258 47,935 43 961

All other receivabies are not past due (2021 not past due).

The movement in the allowance for impairmenf in respect of trade receivables during the year was as

follows:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Opening balance 3,974 728
Impairment loss provided/(reversed) (733) 3,246
3.241 3,974

The allowance account for trade receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group is
satisfied that no recovery of the amcunt owing is possible; at that point the amounts considered
irrecoverable are written off against the trade receivables directly.

Page 64



idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

28.

29.

Company

All trade and other receivables are not past due (2021: not past due).

Ne impairment is held at company level (2021: £nil).

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
idverde UK Limited, with the support of its parent and the Group's principal shareholder, actively maintains
a mixture of long term and short term debt finance that is designed to ensure the Group has sufficient

available funds for operations and planned expansions.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments
and excluding the effect of netting agreements:

Group
2022
Carrying Contractual yearor 1to2 2to5 5years
amount cash flows less years years and over
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loan notes - - - - - -
Intercompany loans 125,343 125,343 37,415 - - 87,928
Finance lease liabilities 9,976 10,750 4,431 3,106 3,213 -
Trade and other payables 57.761 57,761 57.761 - - -

193,080 193,854 99,607 3,106 3,213 87,928

2021
Carrying Contractual 1yearor 1to2 2to5 5years
amount cash flows less years years andover
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Lean notes - - - - - -
Interest bearing loans 87,514 87,514 - - - 87,514
Parent company loans 6,879 6,879 6,879 - - -
Finance lease liabilities 7.997 7,997 3,904 2,482 1,602 -
Trade and other payables 91,783 91,783 91,783 -

194,173 194,173 102,566 2,492 1,602 87,514

The intercompany loans from parent companies are demoninated in GBP. Cash pool loan balances
aredenominated in Euros. The exchange loss in 2022 was £1,083,000 (2021: £188,000 exchange gain).

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2022, the Group had entered into contracts for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment of £164,000 (2021: £1,517,000).

Subsidiary audit exemptions

The consolidated subsidiaries of idverde UK Limited are all exempt from the requirements of the Act
relating to the audit of individual accounts under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.
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idverde UK Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

30.

Related party transactions and balances

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation. Details of transactions between the Group and
other related parties are disclosed below.

A loan to idverde UK Ltd, the company, from Armorica Lux SARL for a principal amount of
£55,526,000 (2021: £55,526,000}, accrues interest at 6.5% above the SONIA rate. As at 31 December
2022, the principal amount outstanding was £55,526,000 (2021: £55,526,000), presented as a non
current parent company loan for the Company (note 22) including the remaining unamortised loan fee,
net total £53,659,000 (2021: £53,406,000).

Another loan exists between Armorica Lux SARL and idverde Holdings Limited for a principal amount
of £35,462,000 {2021: £35,462,000). The loan accrued interest at 6.5% above SONIA. As at 31
December 2022, the principal amount outstanding was £35,462,000 (2021: £35,462,000), presented
as a hon current parent company loan for the Group {note 22} including the remaining unamortised
loan fee, net total £34,269,000 {2021: £34,108,000).

Group Non current parent company loans represents the amount of the two loans and remaining
unamortised loan fee held with Armorica Lux SARL, net total £87,928,000 (2021: £87,514,000)

The accumulated interest on these loans, along with cash pooling arrangements with Armorica Lux
SARL are presented as current parent company loans. Group £37,415,000 (2021: £6,879,000),
company £12,955,000 (2021: £1,572,000).

The Group receives management charges from Armorica Lux SARL amounting to €2,776,084 for
2022 (2021: €2,262,899).

The following amounts were cutstanding at the balance sheet date, recorded in Trade and Other
Receivables and Trade and Other Payables (notes 20 and 21)

Receivables from Payables to Related
related parties Parties
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Idverde SAS 155 2,459 (13,767) (23,596)
Armaorica Holdings SAS 1,590 1,057
ARMORICA LUX SARL - - (2,462) (3,962)
1,745 3,516 (16,229) (27.558)
Company
idverde Ltd 313 313 (11,359) (11,005)
idverde Holdings Ltd 55,389 52,917 - -
Idverde SAS - 2,459 - -
Armorica Holdings SAS - 1,057 - {3,566)
ARMORICA LUX SARL - {3,232)
55,702 56,746 (11,359) (17,803)

Sale of goods and purchase of goods to and from related parties are made at arm’s length.

The amounts cutstanding are unsecured and will be setlled in cash. No guarantess have been given
or received.

Recejvables from ldverde SAS and Armorica Holdings SAS represent recharge of group costs
Payables to Armorica Lux SARL relate to management charges the Group receives.

Payables to idverde SAS represent short term cash loans

No expenses has been recognised in the year for provision in respect of amounts owed by related
parties.
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

31. Controlling party

The Company’'s immediate parent company is idverde SAS, a company incorporated in France. The
financial statements are available from 4 AV ANDRE MALRAUX, Levallois-Perret, 92300, France.

At the year end, the largest group of undertakings for which group accounts are drawn up is Armorica
Topco SCA, the ultimate parent company, registered in Luxembourg and controlled by Core Equity
Holdings LP.

32. Dividends
Dividends of £nil were paid during the year (2021: £nil).

No dividends were proposed or declared (2021: £nil}.

33. Events after the reporting date

N¢ material post balance sheet events to note.
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